
Page 1 

 

 
 
 

AGENDA  
 
Meeting: Strategic Planning Committee 

Place: Council Chamber - County Hall, Trowbridge BA14 8JN 

Date: Wednesday 11 October 2017 

Time: 10.30 am 

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Roger Bishton, of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 713035 or email 
roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115. 
 
This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 

 
Membership: 
 

Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe (Chairman) 
Cllr Derek Brown OBE (Vice 
Chairman) 
Cllr Clare Cape 
Cllr Ernie Clark 
Cllr Andrew Davis 
Cllr Stewart Dobson 

Cllr David Jenkins 
Cllr Christopher Newbury 
Cllr James Sheppard 
Cllr Tony Trotman 
Cllr Fred Westmoreland 

 

 
Substitutes: 
 

Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling 
Cllr Matthew Dean 
Cllr Christopher Devine 
Cllr Sarah Gibson 
Cllr David Halik 
Cllr Russell Hawker 

 

 

Cllr Ruth Hopkinson 
Cllr Chris Hurst 
Cllr Nick Murry 
Cllr Stewart Palmen 
Cllr Graham Wright 

 

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


Page 2 

 

Recording and Broadcasting Information 
 
Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 

Council’s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv.  At the start of the meeting, the 

Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and 

sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council. 

 

By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of 

those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes. 

 

The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public. 

  

Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 

Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting 

from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they 

accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 

relation to any such claims or liabilities. 

 

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 

available on request. 

Parking 
 

To find car parks by area follow this link. The three Wiltshire Council Hubs where most 
meetings will be held are as follows: 
 
County Hall, Trowbridge 
Bourne Hill, Salisbury 
Monkton Park, Chippenham 
 
County Hall and Monkton Park have some limited visitor parking. Please note for 
meetings at County Hall you will need to log your car’s registration details upon your 
arrival in reception using the tablet provided. If you may be attending a meeting for more 
than 2 hours, please provide your registration details to the Democratic Services Officer, 
who will arrange for your stay to be extended. 
 

Public Participation 
 

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of 
questions and statements for this meeting. 
 
For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and 
other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution. 
 
The full constitution can be found at this link.  
 
For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for 

details 

http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv/
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/parkingtransportandstreets/carparking/findacarpark.htm?area=Trowbridge
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD1629&ID=1629&RPID=12066789&sch=doc&cat=13959&path=13959
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1392&MId=10753&Ver=4


Page 3 

 

AGENDA 

 

 Part I  

 Items to be considered when the meeting is open to the public 

 

1   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies or substitutions for the meeting. 

 

2   Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 24) 

 To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 13 
September 2017. (Copy attached) 

 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the Standards Committee. 

 

4   Chairman's Announcements  

 To receive any announcements from the Chairman. 

 

5   Public Participation  

 The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public. 
 
Statements 
Members of the public who wish to speak either in favour or against an 
application or any other item on this agenda are asked to register by phone, 
email or in person no later than 10.20am on the day of the meeting. 
 
The rules on public participation in respect of planning applications are detailed 
in the Council’s Planning Code of Good Practice. The Chairman will allow up to 
3 speakers in favour and up to 3 speakers against an application and up to 3 
speakers on any other item on this agenda. Each speaker will be given up to 3 
minutes and invited to speak immediately prior to the item being considered.  
 
Members of the public will have had the opportunity to make representations on 
the planning applications and to contact and lobby their local member and any 
other members of the planning committee prior to the meeting. Lobbying once 
the debate has started at the meeting is not permitted, including the circulation 
of new information, written or photographic which have not been verified by 
planning officers. 
 



Page 4 

 

Questions  
To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the Council 
received in accordance with the constitution which excludes, in particular, 
questions on non-determined planning applications.  
 
Those wishing to ask questions are required to give notice of any such 
questions in writing to the officer named on the front of this agenda no later than 
5pm on Wednesday 4 October 2017 in order to be guaranteed of a written 
response. In order to receive a verbal response questions must be submitted no 
later than 5pm on Friday 6 October 2017. Please contact the officer named on 
the front of this agenda for further advice. Questions may be asked without 
notice if the Chairman decides that the matter is urgent. 
 
Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior 
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website. 

 

6   17/05062/DP3 - Avon Valley College, Recreation Road, Durrington, 
Wiltshire, SP4 8HH - Extension in two phases to provide classrooms and 
ancillary space (Pages 25 - 40) 

 A report by the Case Officer is attached. 

 

7   Date of Next Meeting  

 To note that the next meeting is scheduled to be held on Wednesday 8 
November 2017, starting at 10.30am, in the Council Chamber at County Hall, 
Trowbridge. 

 

8   Urgent Items  

 Any other items of business, which in the opinion of the Chairman, should be 
taken as a matter of urgency. 

 

 Part II  

 Item during whose consideration it is recommended that the public should be 
excluded because of the likelihood that exempt information would be disclosed 

 
None 



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 13 
SEPTEMBER 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE 
BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe (Chairman), Cllr Clare Cape, Cllr Ernie Clark, 
Cllr Andrew Davis, Cllr Stewart Dobson, Cllr David Jenkins, 
Cllr Christopher Newbury, Cllr James Sheppard, Cllr Tony Trotman and 
Cllr Fred Westmoreland 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Toby Sturgis and Cllr Jerry Wickham 
  

 
48 Apologies 

 
An apology for absence was received from Cllr Derek Brown OBE. 

49 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm and sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on 19 July 
2017. 

50 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 

51 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 

52 Public Participation 
 
The questions submitted by Cllr Ernie Clark and the responses included in the 
agenda papers were noted.  
 
It was also noted that a supplementary question submitted had been recently 
submitted as follows:- 
 

“On what basis therefore can the statement ‘At this stage, it is not envisaged 
that any sites will be listed in Part 2 of the Register’ be justified?  Does this not 
clearly show the predetermination of this LPA against any brownfield sites 
especially within the Trowbridge Community Area?” 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
The Head of Development Management responded by stating that sites could 
only be listed in Part 2 of the Brown Fields Register if agreed and granted in 
principle by the Council.  There was a detailed process to be undertaken and it 
had to be demonstrated that such areas of land were available, achievable and 
suitable for residential development of a minimum size.  Furthermore, a 
consultation and publicity exercise similar to that of a planning application had 
to be carried out at the Council’s expense.  It would not be feasible for this to be 
undertaken by the publication deadline of 31 December 2017. 
 
 
The rules of public participation were noted. 

53 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
An update on planning appeals and decisions was received. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update. 

54 17/03219/REM - Land at Junction of Blenheim Road And Salisbury Road, 
Marlborough, SN8 4FD - Construction of 168 new 1,2 3,4 & 5 bedroom 
dwellings (to include 67 (40%) affordable homes) and associated 
highways and engineering works, landscaping and open space 
 
Public Participation 
 
Mr David Pocock, a local resident, spoke in opposition to the application. 
 
Cllr Peter Cairns, representing Marlborough Town Council, spoke in support of 
the application. 
 
The Committee received a presentation from the Case Officer which set out the 
issues in respect of the application, with a recommendation that reserved 
matters consent be granted.  
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard statements from members of the public as detailed above, expressing 
their views regarding the planning application. 
 
Members then heard the views of Cllr Stewart Dobson, an adjoining local 
Member, who stated that whilst he reluctantly accepted the need for additional 
housing in Marlborough, did express concern regarding resulting increased 
traffic and air quality. He also drew attention to the urgent need for a second 
hotel in Marlborough.  The Head of Development Management informed the 
Committee that both resultant traffic volumes and air quality had been 
addressed as part of the outline application and no problems had been raised 
by appropriate technical officers.  
 
Cllr Dobson also questioned why public access could not be allowed to the 
Ecological Mitigation Area and whether controlled access could be permitted. 

Page 6



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Council’s Ecologist explained the need for the ecological mitigation area 
and outlined the reasons why this area needed to remain private. She did, 
however, indicate that allowing controlled access for educational or research 
purposes was a good idea.    
 
After some discussion, on the proposal of Cllr Andrew Davis, which was 
seconded by Cllr Ernie Clark, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To grant reserved matters consent, subject to the following conditions:- 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 

accordance with the following approved plans and 

documents:  

 

Drawing no.RHSW.5333.SL001 Rev A (Site Location Plan), 

received 12.04.17 

Drawing no.PL-03 Rev H (Planning Layout), received 

30.08.17; 

Drawing no.PL-04 (Materials Plan), received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.PL-05 (Affordable Distribution Plan), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.PL-06 (Storey Heights Plan), received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.PL-07 Rev A (Enclosure and Surface Materials 

Plan), received 22.08.17; 

Drawing no.PL-08 (Presentation Layout), received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.SS-01 (Site Sections and Street Scenes), 

received 03.08.17; 

 

Drawing no.RED20987-03C Sheets 1 to 10 (Tree Protection 

Plan), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.RED20987 10 (Landscape Masterplan), received 

03.04.17;  

Drawing no,RED20987 11C Sheets 1 to 9 (Landscape 

Proposals), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no,RED20987 15C Sheets 1 to 5 (Open Space 

Proposals), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.RED20987-20C (Play Area Proposal), received 

30.08.17; 

 

Drawing no.P17136-01 Sheet 1 Issue B (Adoptable Area 

Lighting Environmental Calc), received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.P17136-01 Sheet 2 Issue B (Adoptable Area 

Lighting Environmental Calc), received 03.08.17; 

Page 7



 
 
 

 
 
 

Drawing no.P17136-02 Sheet 1 Issue B (Private Area 

Lighting Environmental Calc), received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.P17136-02 Sheet 2 Issue B (Private Area 

Lighting Environmental Calc), received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.P17136-03 Issue B (Private Area Lighting 

Environmental Calc), received 03.08.17; 

 

Drawing no.440-P-100 Rev B (Drainage Strategy), received 

30.08.17; 

Drawing no.440-P-200-01 Rev B (Engineering Layout Sheet 

1 of 4), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.440-P-200-02 Rev B (Engineering Layout Sheet 

2 of 4), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.440-P-200-03 Rev B (Engineering Layout Sheet 

3 of 4), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.440-P-200-04 Rev B (Engineering Layout Sheet 

4 of 4), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.440-P-300-01 Rev A (Road Longitudinal 

Sections Sheet 1 of 2), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.440-P-300-02 Rev A (Road Longitudinal 

Sections Sheet 2 of 2), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.440-P-400-01 Rev B (Refuse Vehicle Tracking), 

received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.440-P-400-02 Rev B (Fire Tender Vehicle 

Tracking), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.440-P-500 Rev D (Infiltration Basin Layout and 

Cross Sections), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.440-P-600 Rev B (Flood Exceedance Routing), 

received 30.08.17; 

 

Drawing no.HT-Ludlow-01 (House type Ludlow), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Ludlow-02 (House type Ludlow), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Ludlow-03 (House type Ludlow), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Ludlow-04 (House type Ludlow), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Warwick-01 (House type Warwick), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Warwick-02 (House type Warwick), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Amberley-01 (House type Amberley), 

Page 8



 
 
 

 
 
 

received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Amberley-02 (House type Amberley), 

received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Sherbourne-01 (House type Sherbourne), 

received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT- Sherbourne-02 (House type Sherbourne), 

received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Marlow-01 (House type Marlow), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Marlow-02 (House type Marlow), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Shaftesbury-01 (House type Shaftesbury), 

received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT- Shaftesbury -02 (House type Shaftesbury), 

received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Camebridge-01 (House type Camebridge), 

received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Camebridge-02 (House type Camebridge), 

received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Canterbury-01 (House type Canterbury), 

received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Canterbury-02 (House type Canterbury), 

received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Henley-01 (House type Henley), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT- Henley -02 (House type Henley), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Richmond-01 Rev A (House type 

Richmond), received 22.0 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of 

proper planning. 

 

2 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 

landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and 

seeding season following the first occupation of any dwelling 

or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing with 

the Local Planning Authority; All shrubs, trees and hedge 

planting shall be maintained free from weeds and shall be 

protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or 

plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or 

become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in 

the next planting season with others of a similar size and 

Page 9



 
 
 

 
 
 

species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local 

planning authority.  All hard landscaping shall also be carried 

out in accordance with the approved details prior to the 

occupation of any part of the development or in accordance 

with a programme to be agreed in writing with the Local 

Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 

development and the protection of existing important 

landscape features. 

 

 

3 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict 

accordance with the Arboricultural Impact Assessment & 

Method Statement by ACD Environmental (ref RED20987aia-

ams / Rev C: 29.08.2017).  

 

REASON: In order that the development is undertaken in an 

acceptable manner, to enable the Local Planning Authority to 

ensure the retention of trees on the site in the interests of 

visual amenity. 

 

4 No demolition, site clearance or development shall commence 

on site, and; no equipment, machinery or materials shall be 

brought on to site for the purpose of development until the tree 

protective fencing has be erected in accordance with the 

approved details. The protective fencing shall remain in place 

for the entire development phase and until all equipment, 

machinery and surplus materials have been removed from the 

site. Such fencing shall not be removed or breached during 

construction operations. 

 

No retained tree/s shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, 

nor shall any retained tree/s be topped or lopped other than in 

accordance with the approved plans and particulars. Any 

topping or lopping approval shall be carried out in accordance 

British Standard 3998: 2010 "Tree Work - Recommendations" 

or arboricultural techniques where it can be demonstrated to 

be in the interest of good arboricultural practise. 

 

If any retained tree is removed, uprooted, destroyed or dies, 

another tree shall be planted at the same place, at a size and 

species and planted at such time, that must be agreed in 

Page 10



 
 
 

 
 
 

writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

 

No fires shall be lit within 15 metres of the furthest extent of 

the canopy of any retained trees or hedgerows or adjoining 

land and no concrete, oil, cement, bitumen or other chemicals 

shall be mixed or stored within 10 metres of the trunk of any 

tree or group of trees to be retained on the site or adjoining 

land. 

 

[In this condition "retained tree" means an existing tree which 

is to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and 

particulars; and paragraphs above shall have effect until the 

expiration of five years from the first occupation or the 

completion of the development, whichever is the later]. 

 

REASON: In order that the development is undertaken in an 

acceptable manner, to enable the Local Planning Authority to 

ensure the retention of trees on the site in the interests of 

visual amenity. 

 

5 Notwithstanding the details of earthworks shown on drawings 

number.RED20987 15C Sheets 1 to 5 (Open Space Proposals), 

no development shall commence on the residential part of the 

site until full details of the proposal to dispose of waste soils in 

the wildflower meadow / ecological mitigation area to the south 

of the site, including a soil management strategy and disposal 

plan, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. These details shall include existing 

and proposed cross-sections and contour plans, and the 

nature and source of the material. The development shall be 

carried out in accordance with the details approved under this 

condition. 

 

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local 

Planning Authority before development commences in order 

that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, 

to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 

development and to ensure sub soil and top soil are properly 

separated and layered during any necessary re-profiling/re-

contouring of land to protect the integrity of existing soil 

structure.  

 

NOTE: The surplus soils should be evenly distributed across 

Page 11



 
 
 

 
 
 

the site to maintain the character of the existing valley slope.  

 

6 No development shall commence on the residential part of the 

site until a programme and timetable for the delivery of the 

wildflower meadow / ecological mitigation area to the south of 

the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out 

in accordance with the details approved under this condition. 

 

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local 

Planning Authority before development commences in order 

that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, 

to ensure adequate mitigation and compensation for protected 

species, priority species and priority habitats. 

 

7 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country 

Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 

2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting or amending that 

Order with or without modification), the garages hereby 

permitted shall not be converted to habitable accommodation. 

 

REASON:  To secure the retention of adequate parking 

provision, in the interests of highway safety. 

 

8 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country 

Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 

2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting or amending that 

Order with or without modification), there shall be no 

additions/extensions or external alterations to any building 

forming part of the development hereby permitted. 

 

REASON:  In the interests of the amenity of the area and to 

enable the Local Planning Authority to consider individually 

whether planning permission should be granted for 

additions/extensions or external alterations. 

 

9 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country 

Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 

2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting or amending that 

Order with or without modification), no window, dormer 

window or rooflight, other than those shown on the approved 

plans, shall be inserted in the roofslopes of the dwellings 

hereby permitted. 

Page 12



 
 
 

 
 
 

 

REASON:  In the interests of residential amenity and privacy 

and to protect the character of the built environment.  

 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:  

The attention of the applicant is drawn to the contents of the 

consultation response from the Council's Public Right of Way 

Officer, which can be viewed on the Council's website at 

www.wiltshire.gov.uk 

 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:  

Your attention is also drawn to the conditions imposed on the 

outline planning permission reference 15/02026/OUT and dated 

29 July 2016.  

 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:  

This approval of matters reserved refers only to condition 2 of 

outline planning permission 15/02026/OUT for the residential 

part of the site only, but does not by itself constitute a planning 

permission. 

 

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 

The applicant is requested to permit controlled access into the 
private ecological mitigation area i.e. accompanied access for 
educational or research purposes. This issue should be 
addressed within the Ecological Management Plan which 
needs to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority in accordance with the requirement of 
condition 13 of the outline planning permission.   

  
 

  
 
  

55 17/02371/FUL - Land to the rear of The Paddock, Heath Lane, Startley, 
Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 5HH - Change of use of land to a residential 
Gypsy and Traveller caravan site, consisting of 3 permanent pitches, 
including construction of utility/dayroom and associated works 
 
Public Participation 
 
Mr Mike Lewis, a local resident, spoke in opposition to the application. 
 
Dr Murdoch, the agent, spoke in favour of the application. 
 
The Committee received a presentation by the Head of Development 
Management which set out the main issues in respect of the application.  He 

Page 13

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


 
 
 

 
 
 

explained that since the preparation of the report, it had been discovered that 
the site was directly accessed from a bridleway where no public vehicular rights 
existed. Thus there was doubt that the site could be served by a safe and 
convenient vehicular access and therefore the recommendation for approval 
was now being withdrawn.  
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard statements from members of the public as listed above, expressing their 
views regarding the planning application. 
 
Members then heard the views of Great Somerford Parish Council objecting to 
the proposal which were read out by Cllr Toby Sturgis, the local Member.  Cllr 
Sturgis then expressed his own concerns that doubling the size of the gypsy 
and traveller site would be a disproportionate addition for such a small rural 
community. This expansion in size would also have implications with regards to 
landscape impact. He went on to explain that he had met with the residents of 
Startley who had serious concerns about the proposal. They drew attention to 
the lack of a safe vehicular access to the site and that vehicles were likely to be 
parked in green open space. There was no evidence that soakaways would 
work efficiently in view of the clay soil and furthermore the septic tank did not 
function correctly, foul water discharging into the lane. There was no mains 
water supply to the site.    
 
During discussion, Members considered in detail the concerns that had been 
raised. 
  
On the proposal of Cllr Tony Trotman which was seconded by Cllr Christopher 
Newbury, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To refuse planning permission for the following reasons:-    
 
The site lies in a rural location outside of the defined limits of 
development for any nearby settlement. The relevant development plan 
policy for assessing proposals for new gypsy and traveller pitches in 
such locations is CP47 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy. When assessed 
against this policy, the proposal conflicts with criteria (ii); (iii); (vi) and 
(viii) of CP47. In relation to criteria (ii), the site is directly accessed from a 
bridleway where no public vehicular rights exist and therefore the site is 
not served by a safe and convenient vehicular access; in relation to 
criteria (iii), the site is not supplied with essential services; in relation to 
criteria (vi), the proposal would have an unacceptable impact on the 
character and appearance of the landscape, being seen in conjunction 
with the adjacent authorised site and creating an unacceptable erosion of 
the countryside scene; in relation to criteria (viii), the development would 
result in a conjoined gypsy and traveller site of 5 pitches in a rural 
location that is out of scale and character in this situation where the 
closest settlement at Startley is so small that it is not recognised in the 
Wiltshire Core Strategy as a settlement where even infill development is 

Page 14



 
 
 

 
 
 

permitted. The Council does not consider that there are any material 
circumstances in this case that outweigh this conflict with the 
development plan. 

56 16/11850/FUL - Land At White Horse View, Hisomley, Dilton Marsh, 
Wiltshire - Application for the change of use of land to accommodate two. 
additional Gypsy pitches comprising, 2 mobile homes, 2 touring caravans, 
2 dayrooms and associated works 
 
Public Participation 
 
Dr Simon Ruston, the agent, spoke in support of the application. 
 
Cllr Francis Morland, representing Dilton Marsh Parish Council, spoke in 
opposition to the application. 
 
The Committee received a presentation from the Case Officer which set out the 
issues in respect of the application, with a recommendation that planning 
permission be granted subject to conditions. 
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard statements from members of the public as detailed above, expressing 
their views regarding the planning application. 
 
Members then heard the views of Cllr Jerry Wickham, the local Member, who 
expressed a number of concerns regarding this application.  He raised concerns 
regarding:- 
 

 The need for additional pitches in this area 
 

  Its location in or near to existing settlements within reasonable distance of 
a range of local services and community facilities, in particular schools and 
essential health services. 

 

 The need for the site to be served by a safe and convenient vehicular and 
pedestrian access and that the proposal would not result in serious harm 
to other road users. 

 

 The need for the proposal not to have an unacceptable impact on the 
character and appearance of the landscape and the amenity of 
neighbouring properties, and was sensitively designed to mitigate any 
impact on its surroundings. 
 

After some discussion, on the proposal of Cllr Fred Westmoreland, which was 
seconded by Cllr Andrew Davis,  
 
Resolved: 
 
To grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions:- 
 

Page 15



 
 
 

 
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 
Location and Block Plan 2361/1 REV B received on 5 June 
2017; and 
Proposed Dayroom Plan and Elevations registered on 19 
January 2017.  
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of 
proper planning. 
 

3 No development shall commence on site until the details of 
the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs of the 
'Day Rooms' have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient 
information to enable this matter to be considered prior 
to granting planning permission. 
 

4 Prior to the commencement of development a scheme of 
hard and soft landscaping shall have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the 
details of which shall include:- 
- a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, 
supply and planting sizes and planting densities;  
- details of hard and soft surfacing with on-site parking and 
turning provision. 
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority before development commences in order 
that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, 
to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important 
landscape features. 
 

5 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and 
seeding season following the first occupation of the site or 
the completion of the development whichever is the sooner;  
All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free 
from weeds and shall be protected from damage by vermin 
and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five 

Page 16



 
 
 

 
 
 

years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed 
in writing by the local planning authority.  All hard 
landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important 
landscape features. 
 

6 The access to the existing and new sites shall be maintained 
in accordance with Condition 4 to the Planning Inspector’s 
Appeal Decision issued under reference No, 
APP/F3925/C/08/2088696 dated 23 February 2009.  
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

7 The site shall not be permanently occupied by persons other 
than gypsies and travellers as defined in Annex 1 of 
Planning policy for traveller sites, August 2015.  
 
REASON: Planning permission has only been granted on the 
basis of the provision of accommodation for gypsies and 
travellers and it is necessary to keep the site available to 
meet that need.  
 

8 Occupation and use of the Mobile home and touring caravan 
hereby permitted for each pitch shall be limited solely to and 
by close family members of the occupants of the application 
site. Close family members defined as dependents, sons, 
daughters and grandchildren. 
 
REASON: Planning permission has only been granted on the 
basis of a demonstrated unmet need for accommodation for 
gypsies and travellers and it is therefore necessary to keep 
the site available to meet that need. 
 

9 There shall be no more than three permanent pitches on the 
application site, including the existing pitch. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the amenity 
of occupants of the site. 
 

10 No more than one commercial vehicle shall be kept on each 
of the three sites for use by the occupiers of the caravans 
hereby permitted, and they shall not exceed 3.5 tonnes in 
weight and no commercial activity or use, including the 

Page 17



 
 
 

 
 
 

storage of materials and waste, shall be carried out on the 
site. 
 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity, highway 
safety and the character of the countryside. 
 

11 There shall be no more than two caravans as defined in the 
Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960 and the 
caravans Sites Act 1968 on each of the three sites, of which 
no more than one shall be a static caravan or mobile home 
and no more than one shall be a touring caravan, shall be 
stationed on the site at any time. 
 
REASON: It is important for the local planning authority to 
retain control over the number of caravans on the site in 
order to safeguard interests of visual and residential amenity 
in accordance with CP47 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy 2015. 
 

12 Prior to the commencement of development details of the 
extension to the works for the disposal of sewerage shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved sewerage details shall be fully 
implemented in accordance with the approved plans prior to 
the first occupation of either of the new pitches. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the proposal is provided with a 
satisfactory means of drainage and does not increase the 
risk of flooding or pose a risk to public health or the 
environment 
 

13 The development shall be carried out in strict accordance 
with the recommendations stipulated in section 4 of the 
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (TP-Ecology Ltd, 23rd July 
2017) and the ecological enhancement measures proposed 
in section 4.19 shall be implemented. 
 
REASON: To ensure adequate protection, mitigation and 
enhancement for protected and priority species and priority 
habitats. 
 

14 Prior to the installation of any new external artificial lighting 
a lighting plan shall be submitted to Wiltshire Council for 
approval in writing. The lighting plan shall illustrate the 
location of proposed external lighting and shall specify the 
type, height and position of luminaire(s) and other 
fixtures/fittings such as cowls, louvres or baffles; and shall 
demonstrate that the proposed lighting will not illuminate the 
hedgerows and treelines along the site boundaries through 
provision of a lux plot/lighting contour plan. 
 

Page 18



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: To minimise light spillage and to maintain dark 
foraging and commuting corridors for bats.  
 

15 INFORMATIVES: 
 
For the avoidance of doubt  the requirements of Condition 4 
to the Planning Inspector’s Appeal Decision issued under 
reference No, APP/F3925/C/08/2088696 dated 23 February 
2009 were as follows: 
 
"No development shall commence and no caravans shall be 
brought onto the site until a new vehicular access has been 
constructed and laid out as follows: 
 
i. The new vehicular access shall be constructed to a width 

of 5m from the western boundary of the site; 
 

ii. Any gates to this access shall be set back Sm from the 
edge of   the carriageway and hung to open inwards; 
 
iii  Visibility splays with intervisibility between points on X 

and Y axes at a height of 600mm above the adjacent 
carriageway/drive level shall be provided at the new point 
of access; the X distance measured into the site from the 
edge of the carriageway on the centreline of the new 
access shall be 204m and Y distance measured along the 
carriageway in both directions shall be 140m. 

 
The access shall be retained as such thereafter." 
 
The applicant should note that under the terms of the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as 
amended) it is an offence to disturb or harm any protected 
species, or to damage or disturb their habitat or resting 
place. Please note that planning permission does not 
override the statutory protection afforded to any such 
species. In the event that your proposals could potentially 
affect a protected species you should seek the advice of a 
suitably qualified and experienced ecologist.  
 
 

  
 

57 16/11414/FUL - Land opposite 6 Hawkeridge Road, Heywood, Wiltshire, 
BA13 4LE - 1 no. Gypsy Traveller pitch and associated works including, 1 
no. mobile home, 1 no. touring caravan, 1 no. dayroom and amendments 
to the existing dayroom. 
 
Public Participation 

Page 19



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Dr Simon Ruston, the agent, spoke in support of the application. 
 
Cllr John Masson, representing Heywood Parish Council, spoke in opposition to 
the application. 
 
The Committee received a presentation from the Case Officer which set out the 
issues in respect of the application, with a recommendation that planning 
permission be granted subject to conditions. 
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard statements from members of the public as detailed above, expressing 
their views regarding the planning application. 
 
Members then heard the views of Cllr Jerry Wickham, the local Member, who 
expressed a number of concerns regarding this application.  He raised concerns 
regarding:- 
 

 Barriers to development existed in terms of flooding, poor drainage, poor 
ground stability etc  

 

 The proposal’s impact on the character and appearance of the landscape 
and the amenity of neighbouring properties. 

  

 The absence of a condition to prevent burning on the site. 
 
The Head of Development Management pointed out that neither the 
Environment Agency nor the Water Authority had raised any objection to the 
proposal or made no comment on a possible flood risk at the site.     
 

During discussion Members considered that there should be additional conditions 
regarding landscaping, the burning of waste and the number of commercial 
vehicles allowed on the site.  
 
On the proposal of the Chairman, which was seconded by Cllr Andrew Davis, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions:- 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans:  
Drawing reference PBM16-SLP Site Location Plan registered on 

Page 20



 
 
 

 
 
 

12.01.2017 
Drawing reference 16114/01 Site Survey registered on 
12.012.2017 
Drawing reference 16114/02B Proposed Site Layout received on 
24.08.2017 
Drawing reference 16114/03RPL Dayroom plan and Elevations 
received on 29.08.2017 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of 
proper planning. 
 

3 The site shall not be occupied by persons other than gypsies 
and travellers as defined in Annex 1 of DCLG Planning Policy for 
Gypsies and Travellers, August 2015. 
 
REASON: This planning permission has been granted on the 
basis that the site is occupied by gypsies and travellers and it is 
therefore necessary to keep the site available to meet the need. 
 

4 There shall be no more than two permanent pitches on the 
application site, including the existing pitch.   
 
REASON: In the interests of clearly defining the extent of the 
permission 
 

5 The location and siting of the mobile homes and day rooms 
hereby approved shall continue to be located outside of the 
flood zone 3 area at all times. 
 
REASON: In order to prevent any increase in the risk of flooding. 
 

6 No additional external lighting shall be installed on site until 
plans showing the type of light appliance, the height and 
position of fitting, illumination levels and light spillage have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The lighting approved shall be installed and shall be 
maintained in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to 
minimise unnecessary light spillage above and outside the 
development site. 
 

7 The hedgerow to the immediate north of the site adjacent to the 
sewage pumping station, as described within Planning 
Permission reference W/14/08114/FUL within Wessex Waters' 
letter of 15 October 2014  reference RS/CRT, shall be cut back to 
ground level height at all times, to aid highway visibility. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

Page 21



 
 
 

 
 
 

8 Contaminated water shall not be discharged into any stream, 
watercourse or underground strata, whether direct or via 
soakaways. 
 
REASON:  In order to minimise the risk of pollution of the water 
environment 
 

9 Occupation and use of the Mobile homes and touring caravans 
hereby permitted shall be limited solely to and by close family 
members of the occupants of the application site. Close family 
members defined as dependents, sons, daughters and 
grandchildren. 
 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity. 
 

10 Within three months of the granting of planning permission, a 
scheme for the repair of existing water bank erosion and for the 
prevention of further erosion, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in 
consultation with the Environment Agency.  All works shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: To protect the integrity of the main river, and prevent 
unnecessary flooding. 
 

11 Within each of the two pitches, there shall be no more than one 
mobile home, one touring caravan and one day room, stationed 
on the site at any time. 
 
REASON: In order for the local planning authority to retain 
control over the number of caravans on the site, in order to 
safeguard interests of visual and residential amenity in 
accordance with CP47 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy 2015. 
 

12 Within three months of the granting of planning permission, the 
applicant shall provide elevation details of the proposed raising 
of the brick piers and erection of metal railings, on the front wall 
of the site, as highlighted within plan reference 16114/02A.  All 
works shall be carried in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: In the interests of amenity of the area. 
 

13 No more than one commercial vehicle shall be kept on each of 
the two pitches for use by the occupiers of the caravans hereby 
permitted, and they shall not exceed 3.5 tonnes in weight and no 
commercial activity or use, including the storage of materials 
and waste, shall be carried out on the site. 
 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity, highway safety 
and the character of the countryside 

Page 22



 
 
 

 
 
 

 

14 There shall be no burning of waste or open fires on the site. 
 
REASON: In the interests of public and highway safety as well as 
to ensure the on-site and boundary trees are safeguarded. 
 

15 A  scheme of soft landscaping to be sited adjacent to the raised 
front wall shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development.  
 

16 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details shall be 
carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
final completion of the front wall. The hedge planting shall be 
maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage 
by vermin and stock and if  within a period of five years, if it 
should die, be removed, or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority.  
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting 
 

17 INFORMATIVE: The European otter has been recorded on the 
watercourse adjacent to the development site, the Bitham Brook. 
The Otter is protected under The Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2010 (as amended), which implements the 
EC Directive 92/43/EEC in the United Kingdom, and the Wildlife 
and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). The applicant should 
note that under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 
1981 (as amended) and the Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2010 (as amended) it is an offence to disturb or 
harm any protected species, or to damage or disturb their habitat 
or resting place.  Please note that this consent does not override 
the statutory protection afforded to any such species.  In the 
event that your proposals could potentially affect a protected 
species you should seek the advice of a suitably qualified and 
experienced ecologist and consider the need for a licence from 
Natural England prior to commencing works.  Please see Natural 
England's website for further information on protected species:  
 

18 INFORMATIVE: Safeguards should be implemented during the 
construction phase to minimise the risks of pollution from the 
development.  Such safeguards should cover: 
- the use of plant and machinery 
- wheel washing and vehicle wash-down 
- oils/chemicals and materials 

Page 23



 
 
 

 
 
 

- the use and routing of heavy plant and vehicles 
- the location and form of work and storage areas and 
compounds 
- the control and removal of spoil and wastes. 
 

19 INFORMATIVE: In addition to any other permission(s) that you 
may have already obtained, e.g. planning permission, you may 
need an environmental permit for flood risk activities (formerly 
known as Flood Defence Consent prior to 6 April 2016) if you 
want to carry out work: 
" in, under, over or near a main river (including where the 
river is in a culvert) 
" on or near a flood defence on a main river 
" in the flood plain of a main river 
" on or near a sea defence 
For further information and to check whether a permit is required 
please visit: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-
environmental-permits. 
  
For any further advice, please contact your local Environment 
Agency FRA Permitting Officer, daniel.griffin@environment-
agency.gov.uk / yvonne.wiacek@environment-agency.gov.uk 
 

58 Date of Next Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note that the next meeting of the Committee was scheduled to be held 
on Wednesday 11 October 2017, starting at 10.30am, in the Council 
Chamber at County Hall, Trowbridge.  

59 Urgent Items 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  2.30  - 5.25 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 24



1 
 

REPORT FOR STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE  

Date of Meeting 11 October 2017 

Application Number 17/05062/DP3 

Site Address Avon Valley College, Recreation Road, Durrington, Wiltshire, SP4 

8HH 

Proposal Extension in two phases to provide classrooms and ancillary 

space 

Applicant Wiltshire Council 

Town/Parish Council DURRINGTON 

Electoral Division DURRINGTON AND LARKHILL – Councillor Graham Wright 

Grid Ref 416249  144860 

Type of application Full Planning 

Case Officer  Morgan Jones 

 
Reason for the application being considered by Committee  
 
In accordance with the Council’s ‘Scheme of Delegation Specific to Planning’, this 
application is brought to committee because Wiltshire Council is the applicant and 
objections have been received on grounds which are considered to be material planning 
considerations. 
 
1. Purpose of Report  
 
To assess the merits of the proposal against the policies of the development plan and other 
material considerations and to consider the recommendation to grant planning permission 
subject to the planning conditions. 
 
2. Report Summary 
 
The key issues for consideration are:-  
- Principle of development;  
- Layout, design, landscape & visual impact;  
- Ecology;  
- Impact on heritage assets  
- Environmental impacts, flood risk & drainage;  
- Impact on highway & pedestrian safety;  
- Impact on residential amenity; 
 

 

3. Introduction 

In March 2013, the Secretary of State for Defence announced the Regular Army Basing 
Plan. This set out the future lay down of Army units in the UK as units move back from 
Germany and restructure to deliver the Army 2020 future operating Model.  The Army Basing 
Plan has transitioned into the Army Basing Programme (ABP).  This proposes an 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



2 
 

optimisation of the UK estate including greater concentration of the Army on Salisbury Plain 
Training Area (SPTA), where three high readiness Reaction Force Brigades will be based.  

In order to effectively achieve the ABP, the Defence Infrastructure Organisation have 
produced a masterplan for all the military bases on Salisbury Plain and have allocated sites 
for new services personnel homes to be built. Due to the increase in population for the areas 
allocated, the Defence Infrastructure Organisation and Wiltshire Council have earmarked 
schools where the capacity will need to be increased to accommodate the children moving 
into the new homes. This current application involves the expansion of Avon Valley College, 
Durrington by 200 places.  

4. Site Description   
  
The existing Avon Valley College site is located at the north-east corner of Durrington. It is 
accessed along The Ham to the north and Recreation Road to the south, both are residential 
streets. Avon Valley College is located on a relatively large site at approximately 9.4 
hectares. The application site itself is located on part of the existing sports facilities to the 
north-east of the site.   

 
Site Location Plan with Proposed Layout 

 
5. The Proposal 
 
The current application seeks full planning permission for an extension to the Avon Valley 
College in the form of a new detached building. The proposed development will be delivered 
in two phases: 
 

- Phase 1 will provide the additional accommodation required to provide the additional 
200 places. This will be within a three storey, flat roof brick building. The building will 
accommodate 7 General Classrooms, 2 ICT Classrooms, Suite of Art Classrooms, 
Suite of Music and Drama rooms, Staff work rooms, Ancillary staff accommodation, 
and additional WC provision. 

Page 26



3 
 

 
- Phase 2 is the smaller of the two phases and will allow for demolition of the 

technology block once phase 2 is complete. This will be within a two storey, flat roof 
brick building linked to the building delivered under phase 1. The building will 
accommodate a Suite of Technology Rooms, 4 General Classrooms, and 1 ICT 
Classroom. 
 
This phase also includes enhancement works to the external spaces. These works 
include the replacement of the tennis courts, increased informal hard play, enhanced 
boundary treatment along The Ham and upgrading of some of the existing staff car 
parking spaces. 

 
The application is supported by the following surveys and reports: 
 

- Design and Access Statement by Darnton B3 Architecture; 
- Transport Statement (May 2017) by Key Transport Consultants Ltd; 
- Ecological Impact Assessment (June 2017) by Atkins; 
- Drainage Strategy Statement Phase 1 & 2 (9th May 2017) by Hydrock; 
- Phase 1 Archaeological Evaluation (January 2017) by Wessex Archaeology; 
- Detailed Gradiometer Survey Report (January 2017) by Wessex Archaeology; 
- Site Investigations by JPB Land Consultants; 
- Tree Survey and Constraints Plan by Barton Hyett Associates; 
- Topographical Survey by Survey Solutions. 

 
6. Planning Policy 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework with particular regard to Chapters 4 ‘Promoting 
sustainable transport’, 7 ‘Requiring Good Design’, 8 ‘Promoting Healthy Communities’, 11 
‘Conserving and Enhancing the Natural Environment’ and 12: ‘Conserving and Enhancing 
the Historic Environment’. 
 
The adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy with particular regard to: 

 Core Policy 1 Settlement Strategy; 

 Core Policy 2 Delivery Strategy; 

 Core Policy 3 Infrastructure Requirements; 

 Core Policy 4 Spatial Strategy: Amesbury Community Area;  

 Core Policy 37 Military Establishments 

 Core Policy 41 Sustainable Construction and Low-Carbon Energy; 

 Core Policy 50 Biodiversity and Geodiversity; 

 Core Policy 51 Landscape; 

 Core Policy 52 Green Infrastructure; 

 Core Policy 56 Contaminated Land; 

 Core Policy 57 Ensuring High Quality Design and Place Shaping; 

 Core Policy 58 Ensuring the Conservation of the Historic Environment; 

 Core Policy 60 Sustainable Transport; 

 Core Policy 61 Transport & Development; 

 Core Policy 62 Development Impacts on the Transport Network; 

 Core Policy 67 Flood Risk. 
 

Wiltshire Local Transport Plan 2011 – 2016: Car Parking Strategy (March 2011).  
 
Wiltshire and Swindon Waste Core Strategy 2006 – 2026 (July 2009). 

Page 27



4 
 

7. Consultations 
 
Sport England – No objection, subject to a condition to ensure the delivery of the new 
tennis courts during phase 2 of the development, and a condition to require the submission 
and approval of a community use agreement.  
 
Wessex Water – No observations received. 
 
Environment Agency – No observations received. 
 
Wiltshire Council Highways – No objection, subject to conditions. 
 
Wiltshire Council Drainage Engineer – No objection, subject to conditions. 
 
Wiltshire Council Public Protection team – No objection, subject to conditions.  
 
Wiltshire Council Archaeologist – No objection, subject to a condition to secure a 
programme of archaeological works in the form of an archaeological watching brief to be 
carried out as part of any development on those areas which have not already been covered 
by the earlier archaeological works. 
 
Wiltshire Council Ecologist – No objection, subject to conditions to secure the mitigation 
measures detailed in the ecological report.   
 
Wiltshire Council Urban Design Officer – No objection.  
 
Wiltshire Council Education department – Support: “this is a Council project to provide 
additional places at this school, directly related to need arising from army re-basing in this 
area”. 
 
Durrington Town Council – Support subject to condition:- 
 
“Concern has been raised about the access options for the construction phase of the new 
buildings at Avon Valley College.  Whilst the Town Council appreciates that one of the roads 
(The Ham or Recreation Road) will be required for access during construction there are 
perceived issues with both routes. 
 
The Ham is narrower and more winding than Recreation Road but also has limited pavement 
access on one side of the road, vehicles often park on the road side, there is a particular 
pinch point just after the 2 new build properties (2/4 The Ham).  This would hamper any 
large construction vehicles using the road.  The Ham is also on a bend of the High Street, 
turning in and out of this road for construction traffic will be difficult with vision often impaired 
by parked cars up the High Street, opposite The Plough pub. 
 
Recreation Road is in the centre of the village off the Bulford Road, driving in and out of this 
road is difficult at the quietest of times due to limited vision from parked vehicles along the 
Bulford Road and a tight junction, particularly for large vehicles.  This road sees the majority 
of the College traffic during peak times (pick up and drop off), including coaches and buses 
when it gets very congested.  This is exacerbated by parked vehicles along the roadside.  
The road is also used by walking pupils who attend the college, therefore construction traffic 
would cause a concern to their safety in crossing the road. 
 
Concern has also been raised post construction about the amount of extra vehicles (cars 
and coaches) that will use Bulford Road and Recreation Road to drop off and pick up pupils.  
Residents already feel that they have to time their own commute to work to not coincide with 

Page 28



5 
 

the school run in order to avoid congestion on both Recreation Road and Bulford Road.  The 
extra vehicles associated with another 200 plus pupils will only add to this.  Many of the 
village’s roads are not built to sustain such large vehicles and whilst construction traffic will 
be limited to the build phase the use of coaches by the college for various outings/activities 
along with the ones for pick-ups and drop offs concerns not just Bulford Road and 
Recreation Road but the other narrow streets in the village as well. 
 
Residents and the Town Council would be keen to see another traffic survey conducted 
during peak times for Highways to thoroughly assess the situation before a decision is made 
as to the access route for construction traffic, particularly on Recreation Road, although The 
Ham is also used for parents to drop off and pick up pupils, via the rear access to the 
college.  It also recommends a traffic plan during construction to ensure everything possible 
is done to mitigate the impact on residents and their morning/evening commutes.  Likewise 
construction should be limited to weekdays in order to mitigate the impact experienced by 
the residents of the chosen access route as this will be a prolonged period of heavy/noisy 
construction traffic using small residential roads”. 
 
8. Publicity 
 
The application has been publicised via a site notice and letters sent to properties within 
close proximity of the site. As a result of the publicity 9 letters have been received with the 
following observations.  
 

- The expansion is required to accommodate children numbers from army rebasing; it 
is normally sensible to expand an existing site. However, the site is at the closed end 
of a long residential cul-de-sac (The Ham), and would see a reduction in playing area 
(tennis courts). Regardless of issues such as design the expansion should be on a 
more accessible site with full playing areas. 

- The Ham being used as the main access road is unacceptable. The Ham is not and 
never will be an equitable access road for such an expansive addition to the college 
bearing in mind the width of the lane and current volume of traffic that is already 
causing problems for residents. Recreation Road is also insufficient in terms of 
access for a project of this magnitude with some residents already having to organise 
their lives around traffic commuting to and from the college. 

- Bulford road is already struggling to keep up with traffic volume. The lower end, from 
The Plough to The Ham has become a car park, forcing single file traffic both ways 
causing The Ham junction to become precarious, causing unnecessary gridlock, 
resident’s driveways being used as lay-bys on a regular basis and Buses spending 
more time reversing up the hill to let traffic through as opposed to going forwards.  

- The proposed ‘travel action plan’ is unsatisfactory. Anybody would disregard any 
efforts of ‘raising awareness’ or ‘encouraging sustainable modes of transport’ as we 
all prefer to take the quickest and most convenient route to and from any destination 
using our preferred mode of transport. A weak attempt in an effort to reduce vehicle 
numbers with a few polite words will be ignored as previously demonstrated when the 
‘temporary’ car park was introduced in 2010. 

- An application for a pre-school nursery was rejected in 2013 due to insufficient 
vehicular access. How can this application possibly be approved based on this 
decision alone, considering the immense increase in traffic this project will attract in 
comparison?  

- The scale of this project vastly exceeds what can be expected of non-viable, 
unsatisfactory access roads which will inflict further unhappiness on those already 
affected, jeopardise highways safety and have a negative impact on the village as a 
whole. 

- This application is ill considered with regards to the effect of the volume of traffic that 
will be generated throughout both the construction period and after completion.  

Page 29



6 
 

- Durrington already suffers from serious traffic congestion especially at busy times of 
the day: school drop off and collection and morning and evening work commuting.  

- With the already planned and underway construction of military family 
accommodation this will have a dramatic effect on a village / town that is ill prepared 
for this increase in traffic flow.  

- why is a new school not being built out of the village especially as major construction 
and access improvement is underway on the larkhill side of durrington?! 

- Major access point: The Ham; This road is a quiet access road that narrows 
considerably at the the point where the two cottages (9 & 10) are situated. The Ham 
also leads into a bridle way that has a considerable footfall Of families, children, dog 
walkers and used as access to Milston via the foot bridge. This road, with its, narrow 
access and low power cables is an unrealistic access point for construction traffic 
either from Church street or from Bulford road.  

- Surely thought should be given to either / both:  
- access the site via Recreation road, which is a straight avenue that would be easier 

for large construction traffic to negotiate, and also construct a temporary around the 
rear of the school. The school has enough green space to temporarily sacrifice an 
appropriate area.  

- Alter Durrington''s traffic flow to a one-way system that would ease the flow of traffic 
and improve street parking which can also be used to control traffic speed and flow.  

- No objection to the improvement of the school or the final plans as the school has 
been neglected for years. But the construction phases and access considerations 
have not been adequately thought out. The planning department, highways agency, 
the M.O.D and the emergency services need to rethink the holistic effects upon the 
Durrington area and its residents. 

- Why develop this college? (It is question why the College needs to be extended and 
other options should be considered); 

- Concerns during / after the expansion – The Ham is a narrow lane no-through lane 
with low overhead power cables which is congested and busy during School times. 

- Sport England’s conclusion is far from favourable and they suggest there are a 
number of issues flagged in their response that will require attention.  

- We strongly object to the proposals to extend Avon Valley College on the grounds of 
safety and environmental concerns. 

- The Ham is a narrow, single track for much of its length, quiet residential lane, with a 
number of blind exits from driveways and pinch points. It is totally unsuitable for 
heavy goods vehicles and construction traffic, as the road is too narrow to allow safe 
passing 

- The obvious solution is to access the site from Recreation Road and behind the 
swimming pool, using reinforcing over the grass. This would then enter the site from 
the east, and would obviously be much safer for all concerned.  

- There is no mention the volume of traffic expected to access the building site or of 
whether an assessment has been carried of the construction of the roadway of The 
Ham to see if it suitable to bear the burden of a large number of heavily laden 
vehicles. 

- Has a budget been awarded for the whole project?  ie Phase One and Phase Two. 
- What time has been projected for both the Phases and what time has been allowed 

between phases?  It could be a 10 year construction project. 
 
9. Planning Considerations 
 
9.1 Principle of Development  
 
The relevant adopted local development plan document is the Wiltshire Core Strategy 
(WCS) (adopted January 2015). In accordance with Core Policy 37 ‘Military Establishments’ 
of the WCS, the Defence Infrastructure Organisation have produced a masterplan in order to 

Page 30



7 
 

identify the requirements of the ABP and ensure that infrastructure needs arising from the 
proposed development are an integral part of any planned development. The masterplan 
highlights that the education capacity in certain areas will need to be increased to 
accommodate the children moving into the new Service Family Personnel housing. The 
Council’s Education department has confirmed that “this is a Council project to provide 
additional places at this school, directly related to need arising from army re-basing in this 
area”. 
 
The proposed new buildings will be constructed on an area of the College’s playing field and 
will result in the loss of some tennis courts. Sport England originally objected to the proposal 
as the loss of playing pitches had not been adequately addressed within the application. The 
applicant subsequently submitted a justification for the proposal, including a letter from the 
Avon Valley College and Salisbury Plain Academies outlining a commitment to provide three 
new tennis courts as part of phase 2 of the proposal. Sport England would prefer the delivery 
of the new tennis courts during phase 1, however in light of the commitment to provide the 
new tennis courts, which can be secured via a condition of the planning permission, Sport 
England does not object to the proposal. There will be a reduction by one tennis court / multi 
use games area (MUGA) during phase 2, however this would be mitigated by improvements 
to the 2 remaining courts/MUGAs and the new court, together with a community use of the 
sports facilities. The community use agreement is required to offset the small amount of 
playing field to be lost, and would allow the community use of the facilities for a variety of 
sports. 

 
In light of the above the principle of the proposed development is considered acceptable, 
however the other material considerations such as design and impact on landscape 
character, ecology, highway safety need to be considered and addressed,   
 
9.2 Layout, Density, Landscape & Visual Impact 
 
Core Policy 51 ‘Landscape’ of the WCS outlines that development should protect, conserve 
and where possible enhance landscape character, and Core Policy 57 seeks to ensure a 
high quality design. The proposed new buildings will be sited at the northern end of the 
College grounds and will be well related to the existing buildings. The proposed buildings will 
form a natural extension to the existing College and will not have an adverse impact on 
landscape character or visual amenity.  
 
The Council’s Urban Design Officer has “no issue with the scale (massing and height) and 
contemporary form and appearance of the proposed building shown in the context and 
setting of the school grounds and alongside the undistinguished 20th century college”. The 
siting, scale, design and appearance of the proposal is considered acceptable subject to a 
condition to require further details and samples of the proposed external materials to ensure 
they are of a high quality and appropriate for the site. The proposed site plan indicates that 
the existing landscaping along the northern boundary of the College grounds will be 
enhanced, full details can be secured via condition along with details of all hard landscaping 
within the site.   
 
 
9.3 Ecology  
 
Core Policy 50 ‘Biodiversity & Geodiversity’ of the WCS outlines that all development 
proposals must demonstrate how they protect features of nature conservation and geological 
value as part of the design rationale. The application is therefore supported by an Ecological 
Impact Assessment (June 2017) by Atkins. The Council’s Ecologist is satisfied that sufficient 
survey effort has been applied, relevant to the ecology of the site and the scale of the 
development, and provided the following observations: 

Page 31



8 
 

 
“Most of the new buildings constructed during the two phases will be located on areas which 
are currently either existing hard-standing or close mown amenity grassland, therefore 
permanent ecological impacts can be considered to be very low.  
 
The site lies within 50m of the River Avon Special Area for Conservation (SAC) and Site of 
Special Scientific Interest (SSSI). However there is a road between the northern end of the 
site and the river corridor which helps to reduce the likelihood of impact on the river as a 
result of surface water run-off.   
 
The Atkins Ecological Survey Report gives recommendations in Section 4 for precautionary 
measures to be applied during the construction process, together with mitigation and 
enhancement measures that will meet the requirements of NPPF.  If the recommendations 
are implemented, I consider that the proposal will not result in any adverse impacts on the 
River Avon SAC/SSSI or on any other protected habitats or species within the Ecological 
Zone of Influence” 
 
The condition recommended by the Council’s Ecologist will be applied to ensure compliance 
with the NPPF and Core Policy 50 of the WCS.  
 
9.5 Impact on Heritage Assets  
 
Core Policy 58 ‘Ensuring the Conservation of the Historic Environment’ of the WCS seeks to 
ensure that developments protect, conserve and where possible enhance the historic 
environment. 
 
In relation to Conservation Areas, section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Building and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 places a duty on the Council to pay special attention to the 
desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the Conservation 
Areas. The proposed development will not have an impact on the character and appearance 
of the Durrington Conservation Area as it is located approximately 250m to the west of the 
site.  
 
In relation to Listed Buildings, the duty placed on the Council under sections 66 of the 
Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 is the requirement to have 
special regard to the desirability of preserving the listed building or its setting or any features 
of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. A number of listed buildings 
are located along Church Street within the Conservation Area but none within close 
proximity of the site. It is considered that due to the separation distances and intervening 
boundary screening there will be no harm to their setting.  
 
In relation to archaeology, the NPPF states “where a site on which development is proposed 
includes or has the potential to include heritage assets with archaeological interest, local 
planning authorities should require developers to submit an appropriate desk-based 
assessment and, where necessary, a field evaluation (NPPF 128)”.  
 
The application is therefore supported by a Phase 1 Archaeological Evaluation (January 
2017) by Wessex Archaeology. The Council’s Archaeologist indicated that the 
archaeological evaluation was recommended at the pre-application stage as the site is of 
archaeological interest as it lies close to the Saxon core of Durrington and in an area which 
appears to have been enclosed by a large ditch in the Iron Age/Roman period. A field 
evaluation and assessment has therefore already been undertaken for the majority of the 
site. The Council’s Archaeologist therefore has no objection to the proposed development 
but recommended that a programme of archaeological works in the form of an 
archaeological watching brief is carried out as part of any development on those areas which 

Page 32



9 
 

have not already been covered by the earlier archaeological works. This can be a condition 
of the planning permission.  
 
In having special regard to the desirability of preserving the setting of the surrounding 
heritage assets it is considered that there will be no harm to the identified heritage assets as 
outlined above. However, the application site has the potential to include heritage assets 
with archaeological interest therefore a condition to secure an archaeological watching brief 
is considered necessary.  
 
9.6 Environmental Impacts & Drainage 
 
Core Policy 67 ‘Flood Risk’ of the WCS outlines that all new development will include 
measures to reduce the rate of rainwater run-off and improve rainwater infiltration to soil and 
ground (sustainable urban drainage) unless site or environmental conditions make these 
measures unsuitable. The application is supported by a Drainage Strategy Statement Phase 
1 & 2 (9th May 2017) report by Hydrock which details how surface water and foul waste will 
be disposed.  It is proposed that Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) will be the primary 
consideration of the management of surface water in accordance with Core Policy 67. The 
Council’s Drainage Engineer has no objection to the proposed scheme provided the 
drainage strategy is secured via a condition.  
 
The Council’s Environmental Health Officer has no objection to the proposed development 
subject to conditions to address concerns in respect of potential disruption to the amenity of 
local residents from noise, dust etc. during the proposed construction phases.  A condition 
can be imposed requiring a Construction Method Statement in order to manage the working 
hours and cover issues such as the storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 
development and measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction. The 
Environmental Health Officer is satisfied with the conclusion of the Site Investigation reports 
and has no concerns in relation to land contamination.  
 
9.7 Impact on Highway & Pedestrian Safety 
 
Core Policies 60 ‘Sustainable Transport’ and 61 ‘Transport and New Development’ of the 
WCS seek to ensure that new developments are located within sustainable locations are 
capable of being served by safe access to the highway network.  
 
The application is supported by a Transport Statement (May 2017) by Key Transport 
Consultants Ltd. The Transport Statement has been reviewed by the Council’s Highways 
Development Control Officer who has no objection to the proposed development because 
the parking for staff, parents and visitors meets the requirements of the current parking 
strategy (as contained within the Wiltshire Local Transport Plan 2011-2026). The proposed 
route for construction traffic has however been raised as a concern. This is the key issue 
which has also been raised by the Town Council and local residents.  
 
The Transport Statement states that the preferred route for construction traffic would be to 
enter and exit the site via The Ham from the north as opposed to Recreation Road from the 
south. Access via the Ham is the preferred option at it provides direct access to the site. In 
order to gain access from Recreation Road a temporary construction access track would 
have to be laid across the playing fields to the construction area. The cost is considered to 
be prohibitive but the most important issue is there would be no segregation between 
construction traffic and the College and leisure centre users. It is recognised that gaining 
access via The Ham presents its own challenges due its narrow width. However it is 
considered that an appropriate scheme with mitigation measures can be put in place to 
ensure the safe and efficient use of this route for construction traffic.  
 

Page 33



10 
 

The Transport Statement further states that once a contractor, programme and construction 
method are known, a Construction Traffic Management Plan will be submitted which will 
include delivery times, estimated vehicle flows and size, procedures to prevent mud on the 
highway and parking restrictions. It is therefore recommended that a Construction Traffic 
Management Plan (which can be incorporated into a comprehensive Construction Method 
Statement covering all aspects of the construction phase) be secured via condition which is 
common practice. 
 
The applicant recognises the concerns of the Council’s Highways Officer, Town Council and 
local residents and has therefore engaged further with the local community through a 
consultation event at Avon Valley College. A report ‘Transport Statement Supplementary 
Information Construction Vehicle Access’ (September 2017) has subsequently been 
submitted summarising the outcome of the consultation event and provides further 
information in relation to construction traffic. The report further considers the pros and cons 
of each access route to the site, provides details of the safeguards that can be put in place 
prevent damage to existing road surfaces, building and structures, provides details of the 
construction phase timeframe, provides estimates of vehicular movements, and provides 
details of parking arrangements for residents on The Ham within the College grounds during 
the construction phase. The report acknowledges that The Ham is not an ideal option but it 
is the best option available and the following will be put in place to mitigate the impact on 
local residents: 
 

 The College will insist that pupils and their parents do not use The Ham as a means 
of access to AVC during the construction works. 

 Staff will be encouraged to park in the staff car park at the front of the College in a 
further attempt to reduce College traffic using The Ham. 

 Parking will be made available within the College grounds for residents and their 
visitors to use who would ordinarily park on The Ham in an attempt to keep the road 
as clear as possible to minimise the impact of construction traffic. 

 The Durrington Cross will be protected to reduce the risk of vehicular damage for the 
duration of the works. 

 Warning notices will be placed along The Ham in respect of the overhead cables and 
consideration will be given to placing goal posts on either side as a visible deterrent. 

 A detailed photographic survey of The Ham will be undertaken prior to works starting 
on site and any damage caused will be put right by the appointed Contractor. 

 The appointed Contractor will be asked to produce a construction traffic management 
plan as part of his tender submission including his approach to managing and 
mitigating the impact of construction traffic using The Ham and this will be taken into 
account as part of the tender evaluation process. 

 Before works start on site, a “meet the Contractor” event will be held at the College in 
an attempt to build and maintain positive relationships between The Ham residents 
and the appointed Contractor, and the Contractor will present his Construction Traffic 
Management Plan to the residents. The Contractor will maintain an open door policy 
and Residents will be able to approach the Contractor at any time with any concerns. 

 
A letter has also been received from the CEO of the Salisbury Plain Academies (SPA) 
outlining that the use of The Ham is the preferred access route for the forthcoming 
construction at Avon Valley College. “It is SPA’s view that using the Ham for construction 
traffic will still result in less disruption to the overall community than using alternative routes, 
such as Recreation Road.” 
 
SPA and AVC fully commit to working with local residents to minimise the disruption as 
much as possible, which includes the following points: 
 

Page 34



11 
 

 Careful management of construction traffic to reduce impact on the residents on ‘The 
Ham’ including restricted hours for delivery of construction materials 

 All student access to The Ham will be stopped during the construction period. We will 
also consider restricting access to staff cars in order to reduce traffic movements 

 Resident parking on ‘The Ham’ may be compromised – the school will seek to offer 
an alternative for resident parking on the school site 

 
The Council’s Highways Development Control Officer continues to have reservations with 
the use of The Ham as the access for construction traffic. However, the Officer accepts that 
The Ham is the most appropriate route albeit with measures to mitigate the impact on the 
local residents along the road. These measures can be secured within a Construction Traffic 
Management Plan which will have to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority before the commencement of the development.  
 
9.8 Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
Core Policy 57 ‘Ensuring High Quality Design and Place Shaping’ of the WCS lays down the 
requirement for good design. The policy requires developments to have regard to the 
compatibility of adjoining buildings and uses, the impact on the amenities of existing 
occupants, and ensuring that appropriate levels of amenity are achievable within the 
development itself, including the consideration of privacy, overshadowing, vibration, and 
pollution (e.g. light intrusion, noise, smoke, fumes, effluent, waste or litter). 
 
There are a number of existing residential properties on the northern flank of The Ham which 
have views, mostly indirect, over the playing field. The dwellings are however over 60m from 
the proposed building. Therefore the residential amenity of the occupiers will not be 
adversely affected by the proposal. The residents of neighbouring properties have the 
potential to be affected by the proposal during the construction phase hence the requirement 
for a Construction Management Plan and Construction Traffic Management plan as detailed 
above to mitigate and manage the potential adverse impacts.  
 
10. Conclusion  
 
The proposed development will result in the expansion of Avon Valley College, Durrington by 
200 places. The extension is required in order to increase the capacity of the College in 
order to accommodate the children moving in to the new Service Family Accommodation 
homes as part of the Army Basing Programme.  
 
The proposed buildings are of an appropriate scale and design and will not have any 
adverse landscape, environmental or ecological impacts. The impact of the development 
during the construction phase has been the key area of concern raised by the Town Council 
and local residents. However, it is considered that subject to careful management and 
mitigation measures, which would be secured within a Construction Traffic Management 
Plan, the construction traffic could access the site via The Ham.    

Whilst the concerns of the Town Council and local residents have been carefully considered, 
the scheme is considered to be in accordance with both national and local planning policy 
and with suitably worded conditions, it is recommended that planning permission be granted.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions 

 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 

years from the date of this permission. 
 

Page 35



12 
 

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following approved plans:  
 
Drawing no.90_01 (Existing Site Plan), received 01.06.17; 
Drawing no.90_10 (Proposed Site Plan - Phase 1), received 01.06.17; 
Drawing no.90_11 (Location Plan - Phase 1), received 01.06.17; 
Drawing no.90_20 (Proposed Site Plan - Phase 2), received 01.06.17; 
Drawing no.90_21 (Location Plan - Phase 2), received 01.06.17; 
Drawing no.90_30 (Site Sections), received 01.06.17; 
Drawing no.SK01 RevC (Phase 1 - Ground Floor Plan), received 01.06.17; 
Drawing no.SK02 RevC (Phase 1 - First Floor Floor), received 01.06.17; 
Drawing no.SK03 RevC (Phase 1 - Second Floor), received 01.06.17; 
Drawing no.SK04 RevC (Phase 1 - Roof Plan), received 01.06.17; 
Drawing no.SK10 RevB (Phase 2 Elevations), received 01.06.17; 
Drawing no.SK11 RevA (Phase 2 - Whole Elevations), received 01.06.17;  
Drawing no.SK12 RevB (Exploded Axonometric), received 01.06.17; 
Drawing no.SK13 RevB (Phase 1 Sections), received 01.06.17; 
Drawing no.SK14 RevA (Phase 2 Sections), received 01.06.17; 
Drawing no.20_05 (Elevations), received 14.08.17; 
Drawing no.20_06 (Elevations), received 14.08.17; 
Drawing no.BHA_064_02 (Tree Survey & Constraints), received 01.06.17; 
Document: Travel Plan (December 2016) (ref DFE No: 8654071), received 14.08.17; 
Document: Drainage Strategy Statement Phase 1 & 2 (9th May 2017) by Hydrock 
received 31.07.17; 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 

3 No development above slab level shall commence on site until the exact details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an 
acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area 
 

4 The mitigation measures detailed in section 4 of the approved Ecological Assessment 
[Ecological Impact Assessment (June 2017) by Atkins] shall be carried out in full prior 
to the first occupation of the development and/or in accordance with the approved 
timetable detailed in the Ecological Assessment. 
 
REASON: To mitigate against the loss of existing biodiversity and nature habitats. 
 

5 No development shall commence until:  
 

a. A written programme of archaeological investigation, which should include on-
site work and off-site work such as the analysis, publishing and archiving of the 
results, has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority; 
and 

 

Page 36



13 
 

b. The approved programme of archaeological work has been carried out in 
accordance with the approved details.  

 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an 
acceptable manner, to enable the recording of any matters of archaeological interest. 
 
NOTE: The work should be conducted by a professionally recognised archaeological 
contractor in accordance with a written scheme of investigation. 
 

6 No development shall commence on site (including any works of demolition), until a 
Construction Method Statement, which shall include the following:   

a. the movement of construction vehicles; 
b. mitigation measures to offset the impact of construction traffic on local 

residents; 
c. measures to be put in place to ensure the efficient and safe movement of 

construction traffic along the access route;  
d. a detailed photographic survey of access route and a timeframe for the repair 

of any damage to the access route; 
e. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;  
f. loading and unloading of plant and materials;  
g. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;  
h. details of potentially noisy site equipment such as generators and measures to 

limit noisy operations;    
i. wheel washing facilities, where required;  
j. measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction;  
k. a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 

construction works; and 
l. measures for the protection of the natural environment. 
m. hours of construction, including deliveries; 

 
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved Statement shall be complied with in full throughout the construction period. 
The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the 
approved construction method statement. 
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an 
acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to the neighbouring amenities, the 
amenities of the area in general, detriment to the natural environment through the 
risks of pollution and dangers to highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 

7 No development above slab level shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 
soft landscaping and a timetable for its implementation has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall include  

 location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and hedgerows on the 
land; 

 full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in 
the course of development; 

 a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply and planting 
sizes and planting densities;  

 all hard and soft surfacing materials;  
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences in order that the development is undertaken in an 

Page 37



14 
 

acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development 
and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 

8 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried 
out in accordance with the timetable agreed in condition (7) above.  All shrubs, trees 
and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from 
damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, 
from planting die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.  All hard landscaping shall 
also be carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of 
any part of the development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and the 
protection of existing important landscape features. 
 

9 Phase 2 of the development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the proposed 
new tennis courts / Multi Use Games Area, as shown on drawing no.90_21, have 
been provided and made available for use.  The tennis courts / Multi Use Games Area 
shall not be constructed other than substantially in accordance with Sport England 
Technical Design Guidance Note: Artificial Surfaces for Outdoor Sport 2013. 
 
REASON: In order to ensure new tennis courts are provided in place of the existing 
ones to be lost as a result of the development.  
 

10 Within 9 months of the date of this planning permission, a community use agreement 
shall be prepared in consultation with Sport England and be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and a copy of the completed 
approved agreement shall be provided to the Local Planning Authority.  The 
agreement shall apply all sports facilities within the site boundary and include details 
of pricing policy, hours of use, access by non-educational establish users, 
management responsibilities and a mechanism for review, and anything else which 
the Local Planning Authority in consultation with Sport England considers necessary in 
order to secure the effective community use of the facilities.  The development shall 
not be used at any time other than in strict compliance with the approved agreement. 
 
Reason: To secure well managed safe community access to the sports 
facility/facilities, to ensure sufficient benefit to the development of sport and to mitigate 
against the loss of an area of the existing playing field.  
 
Informative: Guidance on preparing Community Use Agreements is available from 
Sport England www.sportengland.org. 
 

 

Page 38



Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6 17/05062/DP3 - Avon Valley College, Recreation Road, Durrington, Wiltshire, SP4 8HH - Extension in two phases to provide classrooms and ancillary space
	17.05062.DP3 - Location Plan


